
Revised 4/17/2025 4:09 PM 

LUBBOCK REESE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (LRRA)  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 

Date:   Wednesday, April 23, 2025 
Time:   8:00 a.m.  
Place:  Reese Technology Center, LRRA Board Room, 9801 Reese Blvd, Suite 200, Lubbock, TX 79416  
 

AGENDA ITEMS TAB SPEAKER 
Call the Meeting to Order   Tim Pierce 

1. Citizen Comments - Any citizen wishing to appear before a regular 
meeting of the Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority Board of 
Directors, regarding any matter posted on the Board Agenda, shall 
complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no later than 7:45 
a.m. 

TAB 1 Tim Pierce 

2. Presentation Item – KBR  TAB 2 Mark Dieter 

3. a. Hold an Executive Session, in accordance with V.T.C.A.  
     Government Code, Section 551.072, regarding certain      
     matters concerning real property. Discussions regarding    

interest in the lease, sale, or value of buildings and property. 
 

b. Hold an Executive Session, in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government 
Code, Section 551.074(a), Deliberations Regarding Personnel 
Matters:  

• Executive Director  
• Manager of Business Development 
• Manager of Accounting 
• Manager of Operations  
• Operations Lead 
• Service Technician 
• Service Technician 
• Service Technician  
• Operations, Marketing, Customer Care Coordinator 
• Administrative Assistant 
• Board of Directors  

 
c. Hold an Executive Session, in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government 

Code, Section 551.071, Consultation with Attorney.    
 

TAB 3 John Tye 
Murvat Musa 

 

 
 

Murvat Musa 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Darrell Guthrie 

 
4. Action Item – Consider Minutes of the March 26, 2025, Board of 

Directors Meeting  
TAB 4 Tim Pierce 

5. Action Item – Consider South Plains College Agreement for Use of Dark 
Fiber Optic Strands 

TAB 5 Murvat Musa 

 
001



Revised 4/17/2025 4:09 PM 

 

6. Action Item – Resolution Delegating Authority to the ED/CEO to act on 
the Board’s Behalf to Amend Lease Terms Necessitated by the Delay or 
Loss of Grant Funding.  

TAB 6 Murvat Musa 

7. Action Item – Consider First Amendment to Blank Slate Innovation Lease 
for 6 Month’s Rent Forbearance 

TAB 7 Murvat Musa 

8. Discussion Item – Financial Reports and Quarterly Investment and 
Collateral Report 

TAB 8 Sandy Hamilton 
 

9. Discussion Item – Reese Events & Activities  TAB 9 Murvat Musa 

Adjourn the Meeting   Tim Pierce 

Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority (LRRA) will post this meeting agenda on its front doors and on its 
website at http://www.reesetechnologycenter.com/agendas/ by 5:00 p.m., Friday, April 18, 2025. 
 
 

            
by:   __________________________ 

Murvat Musa, ED/CEO 
 
The LRRA Board meetings are available to all people regardless of disability.  To notify the LRRA of your 
attendance or if you require special assistance, please contact them at (806) 885-6592 or write Reese 
Technology Center, 9801 Reese Blvd., Suite 200, Lubbock, Texas 79416 at least 48 hours in advance of the 
meeting. 

 
002

http://www.reesetechnologycenter.com/agendas/


 

ITEM 1 
 

 

 

 

 

Citizen 

Comments 

 
003



ITEM 2 

KBR 
Presentation

 
004



ITEM 3

EXECUTIVE 
SESSION

Information to be provided at 
meeting 

(if applicable)

 
005



Page 1 of 3 
 

Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors   

March 26, 2025 
 
The Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority held its Regular Meeting at 8:00 a.m. March 26, 2025, at the 
Reese Technology Center, LRRA Board Room, 9801 Reese Boulevard, Suite 200, Lubbock, TX 79416. 
 
These are the minutes of the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Lubbock Reese 
Redevelopment Authority, a State of Texas Political Subdivision. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT  
 

Tim Pierce, President John Tye Jeff Mustin 
John Hamilton, Vice President Julie Holladay Brian Kimberly 
George McMahan, Secretary/Treasurer   

     
 
MEMBERS ABSENT  
OTHERS PRESENT 

 
Reese Staff:    

Murvat Musa CEO/Executive Director 
Chris Evans Operations Manager 
Andrea Hamilton Operations, Customer Care, & Marketing Coordinator 
Cecilia Davila Administrative Assistant 
  

 
Legal Counsel: Darrell Guthrie  

 
Visitors:   None 
 

Call the meeting to order.  
Tim Pierce called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. 
 
ITEM 1 Citizen Comments 

Tim Pierce called for any citizen comments. There were none. 
 
ITEM 2  Executive Session  

Tim Pierce called the Executive Session to order at 8:00 a.m. 
 

 
006



Page 2 of 3 
 

a. Held an Executive Session, in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code, 
Section 551.072, regarding certain matters concerning real property. 
Discussions regarding interest in the lease, sale, or value of buildings and 
property.  
 

b. Held an Executive Session, in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code, 
Section 551.074(a), Deliberations Regarding Personnel Matters. 

 
Executive Director  

 Manager of Accounting 
     Manager of Operations  
  Operations, Customer Care, Marketing Coordinator 
      Operations Lead 
      Service Technician 

        Service Technician  
       Service Technician 
        Administrative Assistant   
    Board of Directors 
 

c. Held an Executive Session, in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code, 
Section 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

        

No action taken in the Executive Session. 
 
 Reconvene the Board of Directors Meeting   
 Tim Pierce adjourned the Executive Session at 9:46 a.m. and reconvened Open Session at 

9:59 a.m. 
 
ITEM 3 Approved the Minutes of February 26, 2025, Board of Directors Meeting 

John Tye moved to approve the minutes of February 26, 2025, Board of Directors 
Meeting; John Hamilton seconded; the motion passed 7-0. 
 
 

ITEM 4 Approved the LRRA Investment Policy and Strategy and took action stating the policy 
and strategy have been reviewed. There were no changes proposed for the policy. 
John Tye moved to approve the LRRA Investment Policy and Strategy and took action 
stating the policy and strategy have been reviewed. There were no changes proposed for 
the policy; Brian Kimberly seconded; the motion passed 7-0.  
 
 
 

 
007



Page 3 of 3 
 

ITEM 5 Financial Reports 
Murvat Musa presented the February financial reports.  

 
 
ITEM 6 Reese Events and Activities  

Murvat Musa presented Reese Technology Center activities and upcoming events to the 
Board of Directors. 
 

Adjournment 
Tim Pierce adjourned the meeting at 10:13 a.m. 
 
 
 
Content of minutes agreed to and approved by: 
 
  
          
                                                                             Approved by ________________________________ 
              Tim Pierce, President         
 
 
ATTEST: 
 

 
 

___________________________________ 
LRRA Board Member 

 
008



AGENDA ITEM 5 
SOUTH PLAINS COLLEGE 

INTERLOCAL CONTRACT AGREEMENT 
FOR USE OF DARK FIBER OPTIC STRANDS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 
South Plains College has been leasing dark fiber from Reese since 2004.  The 
current agreement expires April 30, 2025.  
 
This new agreement is very similar to the previous one.  It is for five years at $250 
per strand per month.  This new agreement allows SPC to pay for dark fiber as it’s 
added or subtracted, they currently lease 23 strands.  
 
Staff are requesting Board approval of this agreement. 
 
 

 
009



 

 

 

 

 

 

INTERLOCAL CONTRACT AGREEMENT  
FOR USE OF DARK FIBER OPTIC STRANDS 

 
BETWEEN 

LUBBOCK REESE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, a Political 
Subdivision of the State of Texas 

AS PROVIDER 

AND 

SOUTH PLAINS COLLEGE, a Texas Community College 

AS CUSTOMER 

FOR DARK FIBER OPTIC STRANDS AND RELATED SERVICES 

Reese Technology Center 

Lubbock, Texas 79416 
 

 
010



Agreement For Use of Dark Fiber Optic Strands – Page 1 of 13 

INTERLOCAL CONTRACT AGREEMENT  
FOR USE OF DARK FIBER OPTIC STRANDS 

 
This Interlocal Contract Agreement for Use of Dark Fiber Optic Strands (the 

“Agreement”), is made as of the ____ day of April 2025 by and between LUBBOCK REESE 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, a political subdivision of the State of Texas (hereinafter 
referred to as “Provider”) and SOUTH PLAINS COLLEGE, a Texas Community College 
(hereinafter referred to as “Customer”). Provider and Customer may be referred to herein as 
“Party” in the singular and “Parties” in the plural. 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

1. DEFINITIONS 

(a) Effective Date:  means May 1, 2025. 

(b) Provider: Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority, a political subdivision of the 
State of Texas, whose Federal Taxpayer Identification Number is 75-2713717. 

(c) Customer: South Plains College, whose Federal Taxpayer Identification Number is 
75-6004667. 

(d) Leased Space: Not Applicable.  

(e) Customer Equipment: Means any and all computer equipment, software, 
networking hardware or other materials used by or for Customer, other than Provider Equipment. 

(f) Dark Fiber Strands: Means those certain single-mode connectivity dark fiber optic 
cable being connected or used by the Customer that are leased from the Provider (the “Leased 
Dark Fiber Strands”). Provider agrees to allow Customer the exclusive right to use the Leased 
Dark Fiber Strands under the terms of this Agreement. 

(g) Initial Term:  Five (5) Years. 

(h) Service Fee:  Means the “Monthly Fixed Service Fees,” as set forth in Section 1(i), 
and “Additional Services Fees,” which may be provided for pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement (collectively “Service Fees”) and payable pursuant to Section 4, associated with the 
use of the Leased Dark Fiber Strands, subject to Customer may add or subtract strands of single-
mode connectivity dark fiber optic cable as the set forth in Section 5.6.a. upon thirty (30) days 
written notice to Provider and approval of said addition or subtraction by its Chief Executive 
Officer, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Parties agree that the Service Fees set forth 
herein are for other services that may be provided by the Provider at the request of the Customer, 
to include but limited to additional site security. 

  

 
011



Agreement For Use of Dark Fiber Optic Strands – Page 2 of 13 

(i) Monthly Fixed Service Fee: 

Equipment Type 
 

Number 
Fee Per 

Equipment Type 
Monthly 

Fixed Service Fee 
Dark Fiber Optic Cable Strands X $ 250.00 Number of Leased 

Dark Fiber Strands 
multiplied by 

$250.00 
 
The parties agree that the Monthly Fixed Service Fee set forth herein is for the use of the number 
of Leased Dark Fiber Strands being used by the Customer on the first day of the month. There 
shall be no proration of the Monthly Fixed Service Fee for use of a Leased Dark Fiber Strand for 
a partial month. 

(j) Permitted Use:  Means Customers use of the Leased Dark Fiber Strands to provide 
data and voice transfer for its operations. 

(k) Service Fee Commencement Date: Means the Effective Date (as defined above). 

(l) Network Manager and Maintenance Service Provider: Means Provider or its 
designated agent for network management and maintenance services.  On the effective date of this 
Agreement, Provider identifies, the below, as its network manager and maintenance provider.  
Provider reserves the right to provide these services directly; or at its sole discretion to employ a 
different network manager and maintenance provider.  Notwithstanding the above, Provider 
represents and warrants that network management and maintenance services are presently 
provided pursuant to a contract between Provider and: 

Switch-IT Support. 
Attention:  Jamie Langlois  
1655 Main St., Suite 207 
Lubbock, TX  79401 
(806) 798-2600 
support@switchitsupport.com 

 
(m) Provider’s Address for Payment of Fees:  Payment of Service Fees shall be made 

to Provider by electronic funds transfer to Provider’s bank account at: 

Plains Capital Bank 
5010 University 
Lubbock, TX 79413 
Routing Number - 111322994 
Account Number - 7260002003 
Deposits need to indicate: LUBBOCK REESE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
 
 
 

 
012

mailto:mh@bmsol.com


Agreement For Use of Dark Fiber Optic Strands – Page 3 of 13 

2. SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 
 
2.1 Make Ready.  While the Leased Dark Fiber Strands are presently installed and ready for 
use, Customer shall be responsible for installation and professional engineering services to make 
ready the Leased Dark Fiber Strands for Customer’s requirements. 
 
2.2 Commencement of Service.  Shall begin on the Effective Date and payment of the Monthly 
Fixed Service Fee, set forth in Section 1(i), above. Provider shall comply in all material respects 
with any and all applicable building, construction and safety codes for the construction and 
installation of the Leased Dark Fiber Strands as well as any and all other applicable federal, state 
and local laws, codes, ordinances, statutes and regulations.  Provider shall allow Customer to 
connect to the Leased Dark Fiber Strands in Provider’s facilities, and shall provide all electricity 
and other utilities at its locations as Customer may reasonably require to provide safe and 
convenient working conditions for its personnel for the installation of the Leased Dark Fiber 
Strands into Customer’s locations and for the maintenance and repair of the Leased Dark Fiber 
Strands. Provider shall have no responsibility for any damage or loss to the Leased Dark Fiber 
Strands or any portion or component thereof which is on or in an Customer controlled (whether 
by lease or ownership) location, including any building leased or owned by Customer, either before 
or after installation, if such damage or loss results from a fire, other casualty, theft, mysterious 
disappearance, vandalism or condemnation. 
 
2.3 Grant of Right to Use and License to Use.  Unless sooner terminated in accordance with 
the terms of this Agreement, Provider hereby grants to Customer an Indefeasible Right of Use 
(“IRU”) in the Dark Strand Fibers for an initial term of five (5) years (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Initial Term”), commencing on the Effective Date. Customer shall have the option to renew this 
Agreement as provided below. 
 
3. INITIAL TERM AND OPTION TO EXTEND 
 
3.1 Initial Term.  This Agreement shall be in effect for a period of five (5) years beginning on 
the Effective Date, as indicated above, unless extended or terminated as otherwise provided in this 
Agreement.  For the purposes hereof, “Agreement Year” shall be that twelve (12) month period 
during the Initial Term or any Extension commencing on the Effective Date or the annual 
anniversary thereof, as may be applicable; provided, however, that if the Effective Date is a day 
other than the first day of a calendar month, then the first Agreement Year shall include that period 
of time from the Effective Date up to the first day of the next calendar month and the following 
twelve (12) months, and any subsequent Agreement Year shall be the twelve (12) month period 
beginning on the anniversary of the first day of the next calendar month following the Effective 
Date. 

Customer is a junior college district under the laws of the State of Texas. This Contract shall 
constitute an “interlocal contract” for purposes of Chapter 41, Subchapter B, of the Texas 
Education Code, and Customer certifies, represents and warrants that it has complied with all 
purchasing contract requirements under such laws, specifically including but not limited to Section 
41.031 of the Texas Education Code. 

 

 
013



Agreement For Use of Dark Fiber Optic Strands – Page 4 of 13 

4. SERVICE FEES AND INVOICES 
 
4.1 Service Fees.  Customer agrees to pay to Provider the Monthly Fixed Service Fee set forth 
in Section 1(i), in advance, on or before the 5th day of each calendar month during the Term, 
without deduction or setoff (except as set forth in this Agreement).  If the Effective Date does not 
occur on the first day of a calendar month, the Monthly Fixed Service Fee for the first partial 
calendar month that the Monthly Fixed Service Fee is due will be prorated based on the actual 
number of days within such calendar month after the Effective Date. If the Term expires or is 
terminated on a day which is not the last day of the calendar month, the Monthly Fixed Service 
Fee for the final partial calendar month that the Monthly Fixed Service Fee is due will be prorated 
based on the actual number of days within such calendar month prior to the end of the Term. All 
charges other than Monthly Fixed Service Fee payable by Customer under this Agreement shall 
be “Additional Service Fees”. 

4.2 Service Fee Invoices; Waiver of Recovery of Certain Charges. All invoices from Provider 
to Customer for any Service Fee due under this Agreement will be sent by mail or electronic 
transfer to the address set forth in Section 14.5 or to such other address as Customer may designate 
by notice to Provider.  Payment for Additional Service Fees shall be due pursuant to Tex. Govt. 
Code Ch. 2251.  All invoices shall provide support for the basis of the charge(s).  All data and 
information of any kind whatsoever relied upon by Provider in preparing invoices shall be 
available at all reasonable times to authorized agents and employees of Customer for purposes of 
determining the accuracy of such invoices.  Customer shall pay Provider all Monthly Fixed Service 
Fees and undisputed Additional Service Fees by the respective due date.  Any invoiced amount 
that is either undisputed or which is disputed and subsequently found to be due Provider and which 
shall remain unpaid after the due date shall accrue interest at the rate allowed by Tex. Gov. Code 
Ch. 2251 (hereinafter, “the Interest Rate”).  If Customer disputes any Additional Service Fee, 
Customer shall notify Provider in writing of the dispute within 21 days and shall pay the undisputed 
portion by the due date.  If Provider fails to invoice Customer for any Service Fee due from 
Customer within two (2) months after the last day of the calendar year during which such 
obligation was incurred, Provider’s right to recover such charge or expense will be deemed to have 
been waived.  

4.3 Taxes. All payments required by the Agreement are exclusive of applicable taxes and 
shipping charges. Customer will be liable for and will pay in full all such amounts (exclusive of 
income taxes payable by Provider).   
 
5. LEASED DARK FIBER STRANDS 
 
5.1 Installation. Provider’s grant to Customer of the IRU for the Leased Dark Fiber Strands is 
for the Permitted Use and is provided on an “AS-IS” basis.  
 
5.2 Maintenance of Leased Dark Fiber Strands. All routine maintenance and repair functions 
and emergency maintenance and repair functions, including cable locate services, for the Leased 
Fiber Strands shall be performed by or under the direction of Provider at Customer’s sole cost and 
expense. Customer shall have the right to have an employee or representative available at 
Customer’s sole cost and expense to assist Provider in any maintenance or repair of the Leased 
Dark Fiber Strands. Provider shall use best efforts to provide Customer with forty-eight (48) hours 

 
014



Agreement For Use of Dark Fiber Optic Strands – Page 5 of 13 

advance notice for all routine maintenance and repair functions by notifying Customer as provided 
herein. In the event of an emergency, similar notice shall be given to Customer as soon as the 
emergency is discovered.  

 
(a) Emergency Maintenance. Provider shall use best efforts to respond to any 

failure, interruption or impairment in the operation of the Leased Dark Fiber Strands within 
four (4) hours after receiving a report from Customer of any such failure, interruption or 
impairment and Customer reserves the right to have a representative present to assist in 
any maintenance or repair. Provider recognizes that Customer’s objective is to have all 
fibers restored within twenty-four (24) hours of any failure, interruption or impairment and 
Provider will use its best efforts to accomplish this objective. When trouble is encountered 
on the Leased Dark Fiber Strands, Customer, to assist Provider in its maintenance 
activities, will diagnose the trouble through optical time-domain reflectometer (OTDR) 
testing, if possible, and ascertain and notify Provider of the location address to the nearest 
cross street. Provider shall use its best efforts to perform maintenance and repair to correct 
any failure, interruption or impairment in the operation of the Leased Dark Fiber Strands 
in accordance with its standard emergency maintenance procedures. In the event Provider 
fails to perform any necessary Emergency Maintenance in accordance with its standard 
procedures, Customer shall have the right, with notice to Provider, but not the obligation, 
to immediately undertake such Emergency Maintenance of the Leased Dark Fiber Strands, 
at Customer’s sole cost and expense. 

 
(b) Routine Maintenance.  Provider will schedule and perform specific periodic 

maintenance and repair checks and services, as set forth in Provider’s standard Routine 
Maintenance Standards, from time to time on the Leased Dark Strand Fibers, at Provider’s 
reasonable discretion, upon adequate advance notice to Customer, or at Customer’s 
reasonable request. Customer may request reasonable Routine Maintenance by delivering 
to Provider, not more than twice per agreement year, for Provider’s approval, a statement 
detailing the maintenance checks and services Customer desires to be performed on the 
Leased Dark Strand Fibers. In the event Provider fails to perform any Routine Maintenance 
in accordance with Provider’s Routine Maintenance Standards, after written notice by 
Customer, Customer shall have the right, but not the obligation, to undertake such Routine 
Maintenance of the Leased Dark Strand Fibers, at Provider’s sole cost and expense, using 
contractors pre-approved by Provider.  

 
(c) In the event Provider after written notice to Customer, at any time during 

the term of this Agreement discontinues maintenance and/or repair of the Leased Dark 
Fiber Strands, Customer, or others acting in Customer’s behalf, shall have the right, but 
not the obligation, to thereafter provide for the maintenance and repair of the Leased Dark 
Fiber Strands, at Customer’s sole cost and expense. Any such discontinuance shall be upon 
no less than six (6) months’ prior written notice to Customer. In the event of such 
discontinuance, Provider hereby grants to Customer or person’s acting on Customer’s 
behalf to repair the Leased Dark Fiber Strands, adequate access and easements to the 
Rights-of-Way and easements on or within where the Leased Dark Strand Fibers are 
located, for the purpose of permitting Customer, or others acting in Customer’s behalf, to 
undertake such maintenance and repair of the Leased Dark Fiber Strands. 

 
015



Agreement For Use of Dark Fiber Optic Strands – Page 6 of 13 

 
(d) In the event all or any part of the Leased Dark Fiber Strands shall require 

replacement during the Initial Term of this Agreement, such replacement shall be made as 
soon as reasonably practical, at Provider’s sole cost and expense, unless the reason for 
replacement is due to the intentional or negligent conduct, actions or inactions of Customer. 
If replacement of the Leased Dark Fiber Strands is required in accordance with the 
preceding sentence, Provider shall give Customer written notice of such replacement as 
soon as reasonably practical before the replacement optical fiber cable is ordered from the 
manufacturer.  

 
5.3 Addition or Removal of Customer Equipment. Not Applicable. 
 
5.4 Technical Assistance. Not Applicable.  
 
5.5 Relocation of Customer Equipment. Not Applicable. 
   
5.6 Customer Expansion. Customer may add additional Leased Dark Fiber strands or subtract 
Leased Dark Fiber stands, with a minimum of thirty (30) days written notice to the Provider, in 
accordance with this Agreement at a rate of no less than $250.00 per month per strand without the 
necessity of entering into a new Agreement. The Provider reserves the right to refuse any request 
for additional or reduction of Leased Dark Fiber Strands. 

 
6. SECURITY 
 
6.1 Provider does not guarantee security of the Leased Dark Fiber Strands. Only Customer 
Representatives will be permitted to request Services on your behalf or to request any support 
services with respect to Customer Equipment or Leased Dark Fiber Strands. For good cause, 
Provider may suspend the right of any Customer Representative or other person to visit the 
Provider’s property. Provider will assist in security breach detection and identification, but shall 
not be liable for any inability, failure or mistake in doing so.   
 
7. INTERNET, LOCAL, AND LONG DISTANCE SERVICES 
 
7.1 Internet, Local and Long Distance Services. Customer is responsible for ordering all 
Internet, local and long-distance lines from carriers and ordering any and all necessary cross-
connects from Provider. Provider Recurring Service Fees for such cross-connects are as indicated 
on the Order Form. The carriers will install such circuits in Customer’s name. Customer will be 
solely responsible for such circuits and for all payments due to the carriers. Customer will notify 
the carrier directly when Customer wishes to terminate or modify such circuit. Customer 
understands that Provider does not own or control these services and that Provider is not 
responsible or liable for performance (or non-performance) of such services.  
 
8. NO RESALE 
 
8.1 Customer shall not resell any portion of the Leased Dark Fiber Strands to any other party.  
 

 
016



Agreement For Use of Dark Fiber Optic Strands – Page 7 of 13 

  
9. ACCEPTABLE USE GUIDELINES 
 

9.1 Customer must at all times conform its use of and comply with all state and federal laws 
with respect to its operations of its use of the Leased Dark Fiber Strands. If Provider is informed 
by government authorities or other parties of illegal use of Provider’s facilities or Provider 
otherwise learns of such use or has reason to believe such use may be occurring, then Customer 
will cooperate in any resulting investigation by Provider or government authorities. Any 
government determinations will be binding on Customer. If Customer fails to cooperate with any 
such investigation or determination, or fails to immediately rectify any illegal use, Customer will 
be in Breach (defined below) of this Agreement and Provider may immediately suspend 
Customer’s Service.  
 
9.2 Customer Content.  Customer, not Provider, has sole and exclusive control over the content 
residing on its Equipment or being transmitted over the Leased Dark Fiber Strands (the “Customer 
Content”), and must respond to any notices that the Customer Content violates the Digital 
Millennium Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. § 101 et. seq. (the “DMCA”) or any other law, rule, or 
regulation, as amended. 
 
9.3 Equipment.  Customer will immediately remove or render non-infringing, at Customer’s 
expense, any of its Equipment alleged to infringe any patent, trademark, copyright, or other 
intellectual property right.  Customer will promptly notify Provider of any lien(s) on or security 
interest(s) in the Customer’s Equipment. 
 
9.4 Third-Party Software.  Customer is fully responsible for any third-party software it uses.  
Customer shall indemnify, defend, and hold Provider harmless from any action against Provider 
to the extent that it is based on an allegation that such third-party software has infringed an 
intellectual property right or trade secret, and pay those damages or costs related to the settlement 
of such action or finally awarded against Provider.  Customer’s obligation to indemnify shall apply 
only to the extent permitted by Constitution and laws of the State of Texas and without waiving 
sovereign immunity. 
 
10. INSURANCE 
 
10.1 Customer will keep in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement insurance or 
self-insurance in amounts necessary to protect Customer and Provider against: (i) business loss 
and interruption; (ii) comprehensive general liability; (iii) employer’s liability; and (iv) worker’s 
compensation.  
 
11. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY 
 
11.1 Personal Injury. Each Customer Representative and any other persons visiting Provider 
facilities does so at his or her own risk and Provider shall not be liable for any harm to such persons 
resulting from any cause other than Provider’s acts or omissions resulting in personal injury to 
such persons during such a visit. Customer agrees to indemnify, defend, protect and save Provider 
harmless from and against any claim, damage, loss, liability, cost and expense (including 
reasonable attorney’s fees) in connection with any personal injury, including death, loss or damage 

 
017



Agreement For Use of Dark Fiber Optic Strands – Page 8 of 13 

to any property, or facilities of any party (including Provider, Customer or any other party 
operating or using any part of the Leased Dark Fiber Strands) arising out of or resulting in any way 
from the acts or omissions to act, negligent or otherwise, of Customer, its employees, servants, 
contractors and/or agents in connection with the exercise of its rights and obligations under the 
terms of this Agreement or any breach by such party of any obligation contained herein.  
Customer’s obligation to indemnify shall apply only to the extent permitted by Constitution and 
laws of the State of Texas and without waiving sovereign immunity. 
 
11.2 Damage to Business. In no event shall either party be liable to the other, any 
Representative, or any third party for any claims arising out of or related to a party’s business, 
customers or clients, activities at Provider or Customers property or otherwise, or for any lost 
revenue, lost profits, replacement goods, loss of technology, rights or service, incidental, punitive, 
indirect, special, or consequential damages, loss of data, or interruption or loss of use of Service 
or of any party’s business, even if advised of the possibility of such damages, whether under theory 
of contract, tort (including negligence), strict liability or otherwise.  To the extent that this section 
creates an obligation to identify, Customers obligation to indemnify shall apply only to the extent 
permitted by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas and without waiving sovereign 
immunity. 
 
11.3 Damage to Equipment. Neither party assumes liability for any damage to, or loss of, any 
of the other party’s Equipment resulting from any cause other than a party’s acts or omissions. 
Unless caused by  a party’s acts or omissions, neither party shall  be liable tothe other, any  
Representative, or any third party for any claims arising out of or related to Equipment for any lost 
revenue, lost profits, replacement good, loss of technology, rights or services incidental, punitive, 
indirect or consequential damages, loss of data, or interruption or loss of use of any Equipment, 
even if advised of the possibility of such damages, whether under theory of contract, tort (including 
negligence), strict liability or otherwise.  
 
11.4 Limitations. THE PARTIES ARE AWARE THAT THERE MAY BE CONSTITUTIONAL AND 
STATUTORY LIMITATIONS ON THE AUTHORITY OF CUSTOMER TO ENTER INTO CERTAIN 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS, INCLUDING TERMS AND CONDITIONS (IF ANY) RELATING TO 
LIENS ON CUSTOMER’S PROPERTY; DISCLAIMERS AND LIMITATIONS OF WARRANTIES; 
DISCLAIMERS AND LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES; WAIVERS, DISCLAIMERS 
AND LIMITATIONS OF CUSTOMER’S LEGAL RIGHTS, REMEDIES, REQUIREMENTS, AND 
PROCESSES; LIMITATIONS OF PERIODS TO BRING LEGAL ACTION; GRANTING CONTROL 
OF LITIGATION OR SETTLEMENT TO ANOTHER PARTY; LIABILITY FOR ACTS OR 
OMISSIONS OF THIRD PARTIES; PAYMENT OF ATTORNEYS’ FEES; DISPUTE RESOLUTION; 
INDEMNITIES; ANY PROVISION THAT CREATES AN UNKNOWN OR UNFUNDED LIABILITY; 
AND CONFIDENTIALITY (COLLECTIVELY, THE “LIMITATIONS”), AND TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS RELATED TO THE LIMITATIONS WILL NOT BE BINDING ON CUSTOMER 
EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT AUTHORIZED BY THE LAWS AND CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE 
OF TEXAS.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
018



Agreement For Use of Dark Fiber Optic Strands – Page 9 of 13 

12. RELEASE AND DEFENSE OF THIRD-PARTY CLAIMS AND 
INDEMNIFICATION  
 
12.1 Release and Defense. To extent permitted pursuant to state or federal law, both parties will 
release and defend the other, its director, officer, employees, affiliate and customers (collectively, 
the “Covered Entities”) from and against any and all claims, actions or demand brought by or 
against either party and/or any of the Covered Entities by third parties alleging: (a) with respect to 
the party’s business: (i) infringement or misappropriation of any intellectual property rights; (ii) 
defamation, libel, slander, obscenity, pornography, or violation of the rights of privacy or 
publicity; or (iii) spamming, or any other offensive harassing or illegal conduct or violation of the 
Acceptable Use Guidelines or Anti-Spam Policy; (b) any damage or destruction to the Leased Dark 
Fiber Strands, premises, Equipment or to any other customer which damage is caused by or 
otherwise results from the intentional or negligent acts or omissions by a party, representative or  
designees; (c) any personal injury or property damage to any employee, Representative or other 
designee arising out of such individual’s activities related to the Services, unless such injury or 
property damage is caused by a party’s acts or omissions; or (d) any other damage arising from 
the Equipment or  business (collectively, the “Covered Claims”). In the event of any claim under 
this paragraph, the damaged party may select its own counsel.  
  
12.2 Notification. Each party will provide the other with prompt written notice of each Covered 
Claim of which either party becomes aware, and, at the party’s sole option, party may elect to 
participate in the defense and settlement of a Covered Claim, provided that such participation shall 
not relieve either party of any of its obligation under this Section.   
 
13. TERMINATION AND DEFAULT 
 
13.1 Conditions of Breach. Breach of this Agreement will occur if either party does not fulfill 
its obligations under this Agreement and such Breach is not cured within thirty (30) days of written 
notice by the other party. Specifically relating to payment of Service Fees, the Customer will be 
in Breach of this Agreement if Customer has not paid its undisputed invoice within sixty (60) days 
of the invoice due date.   
 
13.2 Remedies for Breach. If Customer is in Breach of this Agreement, Provider may (a) 
discontinue all Services to Customer, including use of the Leased Dark Fiber Strands; and (b) 
disconnect Customer from its Internet, power and telecommunications services.  If Provider is 
in Breach of this Agreement, Customer may (a) be released from any further payment obligations 
to Provider, and (b) Provider shall pay any and all reasonable Customer cost to replace the services 
Provider has promised to provide pursuant to this Agreement, subject to availability of additional 
fiber strands on Providers network. 
 
13.3 Estoppel and Waiver.  No breach under this Agreement will be deemed to have been 
waived, nor will either party be guilty of laches, because of the failure of either party to take action 
pertaining to such breach. 

13.4 Remedies Cumulative.  The rights and remedies given to Provider and Customer in this 
Agreement are distinct, separate and cumulative remedies, and the exercise of any one or more of 
them will not be deemed to exclude Provider’s or Customer’s rights to exercise any or all of the 

 
019



Agreement For Use of Dark Fiber Optic Strands – Page 10 of 13 

others which are given in this Agreement, or at law or in equity, unless such remedies are expressly 
excluded. 

13.5 Litigation, Court Costs and Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event that at any time either Provider 
and Customer institutes any action or proceeding against the other relating to the provisions of this 
Agreement or any default hereunder, including an action for declaratory relief, the prevailing party 
in such action or proceeding will be entitled to recover from the other party, in addition to any 
other relief that may be awarded, reasonable and necessary attorneys’ fees and costs. 

14. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS   
 
14.1 Force Majeure. “Event of Force Majeure” means an event beyond the control of Provider 
or Customer which prevents or makes a party’s compliance with any of its obligations under the 
Agreement illegal or impracticable, including but not limited to: act of God (including, without 
limitation, fire, explosion, earthquake, tornado, drought, and flood); war, act or threats of terrorism, 
hostilities (whether or not war be declared), invasion, act of enemies, mobilization, requisition, or 
embargo; rebellion, insurrection, military or usurped power, or civil war; contamination or 
destruction from any nuclear, chemical, or biological event; riot, commotion, strikes, go slows, 
lock outs, or disorder; epidemic, pandemic, viral outbreak, or health crisis; or directive of 
governmental authority. No party will be considered in breach of the Agreement to the extent that 
performance of their respective obligations is prevented or made illegal or impracticable by an 
Event of Force Majeure that arises during the term (or after execution of the Agreement but prior 
to the beginning of the term). A party asserting an Event of Force Majeure hereunder (“Affected 
Party”) will give reasonable notice to the other party of an Event of Force Majeure upon it being 
foreseen by, or becoming known to, Affected Party. In the event of an Event of Force Majeure, 
Affected Party will endeavor to continue to perform its obligations under the Agreement only so 
far as reasonably practicable.   
 
14.2 No Lease. This Agreement is a services agreement and is not intended to and will not 
constitute a lease of any real or personal property. In particular, Customer acknowledges and 
agrees that Customer has not been granted any real property interest in the Provider premises, and 
Customer has no rights as a Customer or otherwise under any real property or Provider/Customer 
laws, regulation or ordinances.  This Agreement is an indefeasible right to use and license to use 
the Leased Dark Fiber Strands for the Permitted Use. 
 
14.3 Government Regulations. Customer will not export, re-export, transfer, or make available, 
whether directly or indirectly, any regulated item or information to anyone outside the U.S. in 
connection with this Agreement without first complying with all export control laws and 
regulations which may be imposed by the U.S. Government and any country or organization of 
nations within whose jurisdiction Customer operates or does business.   
 
14.4 Assignment. Customer may assign its rights or delegate its duties under this Agreement 
either in whole or in part with the prior written consent of the Provider, which should not be 
unreasonably withheld. Any attempted assignment or delegation without such consent will be void. 
This Agreement will bind and inure to the benefit of each party’s successors and permitted assigns. 
  
 

 
020



Agreement For Use of Dark Fiber Optic Strands – Page 11 of 13 

14.5 Notices. Any notices sent or required to be given hereunder must be in writing and sent by 
certified mail, return receipt requested, or nationally recognized overnight courier to the following 
addresses: 

Provider: Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority 
9801 Reese Boulevard, Suite 200 
Lubbock, Texas 79416 
Attn:  Executive Director 
Telephone: (806) 885-3597  
E-mail:  mmusa@reesecenter.com  

 
 Customer:  South Plains College 

c/o Dr. Robin Satterwhite 
1401 S. College Avenue 
Levelland, TX 79336 
Telephone: (806) 894-9611   
Fax:  (806) 897-2800 
Email: rsatterwhite@southplainscollege.edu 

 
Notices will be deemed given on the date received (or refused) when addressed to the parties at 
the addresses set forth above or in either case to such other addresses as Provider or Customer may 
designate to the other by notice. Notice may also be given by regular mail, personal delivery, 
courier delivery, or other commercially reasonable means and will be effective when actually 
received. Any address for notice may be changed by written notice delivered as provided herein.  
Without limiting the foregoing, any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement 
may be sent by e-mail at the appropriate e-mail address set forth in this Section 14.5, as the same 
may be amended, or to such other e-mail address as Provider or Customer may from time to time 
designate in a notice to the other; provided that such e-mailed notice expressly states that it 
represents a notice under Section 14.5 of this Agreement.  Any e-mailed notice shall be deemed 
given on the date of delivery, provided that (i) such delivery is reasonably confirmed as received 
by the recipient (i.e., no error report is received by the sender); and (ii) if delivery occurs after 5:00 
p.m. in the time zone of the recipient or on a non-business day, then such notice shall be deemed 
received on the first business day after the day of delivery.   
14.6 Relationship of Parties. Provider and Customer are independent contractors and this 
Agreement will not establish any relationship of partnership, joint venture, employment, franchise 
or agency between Provider and Customer. Neither Provider nor Customer will have the power to 
bind the other or incur obligations on the other’s behalf without the other’s prior written consent, 
except as otherwise expressly provided herein.  
 
14.7 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Texas, and all obligations of the parties are performable in Lubbock County, Texas. 

14.8 Authority. Customer is duly organized and validly existing and has full power and authority 
to enter into this Agreement and to perform the obligations of Customer under this Agreement.  
Provider is duly organized and validly existing and has full power and authority to enter into this 
Agreement and to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
021



Agreement For Use of Dark Fiber Optic Strands – Page 12 of 13 

14.9 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which 
will be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  
 
14.10 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the Order Form and Provider policies 
referred to in this Agreement represents the complete agreement and understanding of the parties 
with respect to the subject matter herein, and supersedes any other agreement or understanding, 
written or oral with respect to the subject matter herein. This Agreement may be modified only 
through a written instrument signed by both parties. Both parties represent and warrant that they 
have full corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and to perform their 
obligations under this Agreement and the person whose signature appears above is duly authorized 
to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the respective party. Should any terms of this Agreement 
be declared void or unenforceable by any arbitrator or court of competent jurisdiction, such terms 
will be amended to achieve as nearly as possible the same economic effect as the original terms 
and the remainder of the Agreement will remain in full force and effect.  
 
14.11 Security Conditions.  Provider and Customer acknowledge and agree that the Project is 
located on property formerly owned and operated by the United States Air Force as the Reese Air 
Force Base, and that certain portions of the Project have been previously utilized by local, state 
and federal governmental entities (hereinafter, “the Government”) in times of state or national 
emergencies to provide temporary evacuation shelters and other such uses. Additionally, Provider 
has other Customers of the Project that require controlled access to the Airfield during certain 
operations. Provider represents that the Government may continue to utilize the Project during the 
Term of this Lease in times of state or national emergency (with or without Provider’s express 
consent), and other Customers of the Project, when approved by the Provider, may require 
controlled access to the Airfield, and that such use could adversely affect Customer’s ability to 
access the Premises and/or use the Common Areas due to additional security measures; provided, 
however, that such adverse impact shall only delay and shall not unreasonably deny access by 
Customer to the Premises.     
 
Customer acknowledges and agrees that, in the event that the Government utilizes any portion of 
the Project in a time of state or national emergency or when the Provider authorizes other 
Customers of the Project to control access to the Airfield, Customer, its employees, officers, 
agents, and contractors will comply with all reasonable security regulations imposed by the 
Provider or applicable governmental agency, including the requirement to obtain and display 
security identification cards and to comply with reasonable security procedures. 
 
15. WARRANTIES 
 
15.1 Limitation of Warranties. THERE ARE NO IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR OF ANY OTHER 
KIND ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT, AND THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES THAT 
EXTEND BEYOND THOSE EXPRESSLY STATED IN THIS AGREEMENT.    
 

THE CUSTOMER AND PROVIDER DO NOT WAIVE SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY BY 
ITS EXECUTION OF OR BY ANY CONDUCT OF ITS REPRESENTATIVES UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT. 

 
022



Agreement For Use of Dark Fiber Optic Strands – Page 13 of 13 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, having read and intending to be bound by the terms hereof, 
the parties have signed this Lease on the date(s) set forth below. 

 

 
LUBBOCK REESE  
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
(“Provider”) 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
By:  Murvat Musa 
Its: Chief Executive Officer 
 
___________________________________ 
Date 

 
SOUTH PLAINS COLLEGE 
(“Customer”) 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
By:  Dr. Robin Satterwhite 
Its:  President 
 
___________________________________ 
Date 

 
 

 
023



BOARD ACTION ITEM No. 2025-0423-011 
SOUTH PLAINS COLLEGE 

 INTERLOCAL CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR DARK FIBER OPTIC STRANDS 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
LUBBOCK REESE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (LRRA) 

April 23, 2025 
 
Item to Be Considered:  
 
Interlocal Contract Agreement for Dark Fiber Optic Strands for South Plains College 
(SPC)   
 
Previous Board Action: 
 

a. SPC has leased dark fiber from Reese since 2004, with their current 
agreement expiring on April 30, 2025. 
 

 
Statement of Pertinent Facts: 
 

a. Term of agreement:  5 years 
b. Rate:  $250 per strand per month 
c. SPC will be billed for the number of strands they use, which is currently 23. 
d. SPC can add or remove strands as needed 
 

Advice Opinions Recommendations and Motion: 
 
If the Board of Directors concurs, the following motion is in order: 
 
“Resolved, that the Board of Directors of the Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority 
hereby authorizes its CEO/Executive Director to execute the Interlocal Contract 
Agreement for Dark Fiber Optic Strands for South Plains College, subject to negotiation 
of final terms and conditions, on the 23rd day of April 2025.” 

 
Approved by:   
 
___________________ 

        Tim Pierce - President  
  
ATTEST:   
  
____________________ 
LRRA Board Member 

 
024



AGENDA ITEM 6 
RESOLUTION DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO CEO/ED 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 
Due to various Executive Orders of the President of the United States, research 
grant funding has been suspended pending review, cancelled, or withdrawn and 
LRRA has several customers that depend on federal grant funding. Specifically, 
Blank Slate Innovations (a request to amend their lease will be considered under 
Agenda Item 7 of this Board Book) has been adversely affected by the President’s 
order and staff are anticipating that other LRRA customers will be affected. 
 
Staff are recommending the Board delegate authority to the Executive 
Director/CEO to allow her to act on the Board’s behalf to address changes to 
leases that become necessary due to lack of funding. These lease changes may 
include forbearance of rent, extension of lease terms, renegotiation of lease 
terms, or any combination thereof that may be necessitated by the delay in 
receipt or loss of federal grant funding. Staff will report to the Board any 
customers that request these modification and the outcome of those requests. 
 
See the attached Board Action Item for details of the Resolution. 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
025



BOARD ACTION ITEM No. 2025-0423-012 
RESOLUTION DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO ED/CEO TO AMEND LEASES 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

LUBBOCK REESE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (LRRA) 
April 23, 2025 

 
Items to be Considered: 
 

a. Approve a resolution regarding delegating to the Executive Director/Chief Executive 
Officer (the “CEO”) the authority to act on the Board’s behalf in to address the 
forbearance of rent, extension of lease terms, renegotiation of lease terms, or any 
combination thereof that may be necessitated by the delay in receipt or loss of 
federal grant funding. 

 
Previous Board Action: None.  
 
Statement of Pertinent Facts: 
 

a. By various Executive Orders of the President of the United States research grant 
funding has been suspended pending review, cancelled, or withdrawn. 
 

b. Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority has several customers who are wholly or 
partially dependent on federal grant funding. 

 
c. Specifically, Blank Slate Innovation L.L.C., has requested a 6-month period of rent 

forbearance that is being considered under a separate action item.  

Advice, Opinions, Recommendations and Motion: 
 
If the Board of Directors concurs, the following motion is in order: 
 

“Resolved, that the Board of Directors of the Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority 
hereby delegates to the CEO the authority to amend existing leases or other similar 
agreements for the purpose of granting the forbearance of rent, extension of lease 
terms, renegotiation of lease terms, or any combination thereof that may be 
necessitated by the delay in receipt or loss of federal grant funding by tenants that may 
be wholly or partially dependent on federal grants, as submitted on this 23rd day of 
April 2025. 
 

Approved by:___________________ 
Tim Pierce, President 

ATTEST: ______________________ 
  LRRA Board Member 

 
026



AGENDA ITEM 7 
BLANK SLATE INNOVATION 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE, B170 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
Due to Executive Orders of the President of the United States, Blank Slate 
Innovation’s federal grant funding has been delayed and may be cancelled or 
withdrawn.  
 
Blank Slate, in collaboration with TTU, currently has four grant proposals 
outstanding with such agencies as NSF, DOE, and NASA. They have requested a 
lease modification to accommodate this delay. The attached First Amendment 
allows for rent forbearance for six months but with those months added to the 
back end of their lease. In essence, they won’t pay rent for six months, but they 
will have to make those months up later. 
 
Attached are the Frist Amendment as well as the original lease. 
 
Staff are requesting Board approval of this First Amendment to Blank Slate 
Innovation Lease. 
 
 

 
027



 
 

- Page 1 - 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
STANDARD SHORT TERM INDUSTRIAL LEASE 

COMMENCEMENT DATE:  APRIL 1, 2024 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT (“Amendment”) between the LANDLORD, LUBBOCK 
REESE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (“LRRA”) and TENANT, BLANK SLATE 
INNOVATION, L.L.C. (“Blank Slate Innovation”) is hereby incorporated into a certain 
STANDARD SHORT TERM INDUSTRIAL LEASE, previously executed by both parties and 
dated February 28, 2024 (collectively, the “Lease”).   
 

This Amendment is hereby executed to amend and replace the following portions of the 
Lease.  The terms and conditions, specifications, and requirements remain as per the Lease, 
except as amended below. 
 
The Lease is supplemented as stated below: 
 
1. Lease Extension and the Forbearance of Rent for a period of six (6) months –  

In consideration for the extension of the dates of the Option to Extend Term (Renewal #1 
and Renewal #2), as set forth in the revised chart set forth below, and recognition of the impact on 
Tenant from the review of federal grant funding, Landlord agrees to forego the payment of Rent 
for a period of six (6) months beginning May 1, 2025. 
 
2. Section 1, Subsection (o) Base Rent –  
 

Replace the chart with the following, which recognizes the Landlord forgoing six (6) 
months of lease payments beginning May 1, 2025, and ending October 31, 2025, during Renewal 
#1 and the adjustment of the end date of Renewal #1 and the start date of Renewal #2, if exercised 
by the Tenant. 

 

Initial Term Lease Years  Total Annual 
Base Rent  

Total Monthly 
Base Rent  

Annual Base Rent Per Square 
Foot of Floor Area of the 
Premises  

Year 1  
March 1, 2024 – February 
28, 2025 

$9,732.00 $811.00 $12.00 

Renewal #1 
March 1, 2025 – August 31, 
2026 (no monthly Base Rent 
due May 1, 2025 – October 
31, 2025) 

$10,121.28 $843.44 $12.48 

Renewal #2 
September 1, 2026 – August 
31, 2027 

$10,526.78 $877.23 $12.98 

 
028



 
 

- Page 2 - 

 
 The signatories warrant that they are empowered to enter into this Amendment and that it 
is hereby accepted.  This Amendment shall be effective and binding between the parties hereby 
upon execution by both parties.  
 

The execution of this Amendment by Landlord shall not be considered a waiver of 
Landlord’s sovereign immunity to suit. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, having read and intending to be bound by the terms hereof, 

the Parties have signed this Amendment on the date(s) set forth below. 

 
LUBBOCK REESE  
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
(“Landlord”) 
 
 
___________________________________ 
By: Murvat Musa, CEO 
 
___________________________________ 
Date 
 

BLANK SLATE INNOVATION, L.L.C. 
(“Tenant”) 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
By:  Annette Sobel, CEO  
 
___________________________________ 
Date 
 

 
 

 
029



 
030



 
031



 
032



 
033



 
034



 
035



 
036



 
037



 
038



 
039



 
040



 
041



 
042



 
043



 
044



 
045



 
046



 
047



 
048



 
049



 
050



BOARD ACTION ITEM No. 2025-0423-013 
FIRST LEASE AMENDMENT FOR BLANK SLATE INNOVATION, BUILDING 170 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

LUBBOCK REESE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (LRRA) 
April 23, 2025 

 
Items to be Considered: 
 
Approve the First Lease Amendment for Blank Slate Innovation for Building 170 allowing for 
forbearance of rent for 6 months due to a delay in federal grant funding. 
 
Previous Board Action:   
 
The Board approved the Lease for Blank Slate Innovation at the February 28, 2024, Board 
meeting.  
 
Statement of Pertinent Facts: 
 

a. By various Executive Orders of the President of the United States research grant 
funding has been suspended pending review, cancelled, or withdrawn. 

b. Blank Slate Innovation is wholly or partially dependent on federal grant funding.  
c. The First Amendment allows for a 6-month period of rent forbearance that will be 

added back at the end of their lease term. 

Advice, Opinions, Recommendations and Motion: 
 
If the Board of Directors concurs, the following motion is in order: 
 

“Resolved, that the Board of Directors of the Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority 
hereby authorizes its CEO/Executive Director to execute the First Amendment for Blank 
Slate Innovation, subject to negotiation of final terms and conditions, on the 23rd day of 
April 2025.” 
 

Approved by:___________________ 
Tim Pierce, President 

ATTEST: ______________________ 
  LRRA Board Member 

 
051



CASH BALANCES - MARCH 31, 2025

2/28/2025 3/31/2025 Change

General Fund Bank Accounts 5,025,730$              5,271,638$              245,908$                   

Fiber Optic Fund Checking -$                             -$                            -$                              

EDA Grant Checking 115,951$                   113,108$                  (2,843)$                       

Capital Maintenance - Designated 855,000$                   855,000$                  -$                              

Petty Cash -$                             -$                            -$                              

           Total Cash 5,996,681$               6,239,746$               243,065$                    

Accounts Receivable - G/F 365,699$                   388,574$                  22,875$                      

Accounts Receivable - F/O 9,084$                        10,453$                     1,369$                        

          Total Accounts Receivable 374,783$                    399,027$                   24,244$                       

Total Cash & Accounts Receivable 6,371,464$               6,638,773$               267,309$                    

Aged Accounts Receivable as of 03/31/2025

CURRENT 1 - 30 Days  -  Invoices 31 - 60 Days  -  Invoices 61 > Days  -  Invoices Over 90 Days TOTAL

205,545.01                                   52,527.77                                 138,244.93                                (19.75)                                           2,728.41                                       399,026.37                              
Aged Accounts Receivable as of 04/17/2025

CURRENT 1 - 30 Days  -  Invoices 31 - 60 Days  -  Invoices 61 > Days  -  Invoices Over 90 Days TOTAL

27,494.06                                      5,519.55                                    479.72                                          (238.41)                                        2,273.19                                       35,528.11                                 

EXTRAORDINARY EXPENSES/CAPITAL EXPENSES  & OTHER

-$                                       

 
052



             

6,239,746.

0

1000000

2000000

3000000

4000000

5000000

6000000

7000000

LRRA Available Cash 
MARCH   2020 - 2025

 
053



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - MARCH 31, 2025
 

DESCRIPTION Month        G/F Month             F/O Month's   Total YTD                    G/F YTD              F/O YTD             Total

Operating Revenue 262,673$        17,694$                280,367$                   1,615,862$              106,163$             1,722,025$       

Other Revenue - Usage Fees 17,107$           1,497$                   18,604$                      172,979$                  9,971$                  182,950$           

      Total Revenue 279,780$        19,191$                298,971$                   1,788,841$              116,134$             1,904,975$       

Expenses 180,047$        10,499$                190,546$                   1,285,000$              58,782$               1,343,782$       

Net Income BPSID 99,733$           8,692$                   108,425$                   503,841$                  57,352$               561,193$           

Interest Income - Plus 19,484$           -$                              19,484$                      110,451$                  -$                             110,451$           

Depreciation - Less (49,924)$         (3,283)$                 (53,207)$                    (299,547)$                 (19,701)$              (319,248)$          

Net Income  69,293$           5,409$                   74,702$                      314,745$                  37,651$               352,396$           

 
054



LUBBOCK REESE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Balance Sheet

As of 3/31/2025

(In Whole Numbers)

General Fund EDA Grant Fund
Data Center / 

Fiber Optic Fund Total

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS                   6,126,638                                -                                  -                     6,126,638 
RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS                                -                        113,108                                -                        113,108 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE                      388,574                                -                          10,453                      399,026 
LEASES RECEIVABLE, CURRENT - GASB 87                   1,624,951                                -                          86,032                   1,710,983 
INVESTMENT                                -                                  -                                  -                                  -   
DUE FROM FEDERAL GOVERNMENT                                -                          53,129                                -                          53,129 
PREPAID EXPENSES                      148,755                                -                            8,907                      157,662 
DUE FROM TRANSFERS                                -                                  -                                  -                                  -   

Total CURRENT ASSETS              8,288,918                 166,237                 105,392              8,560,546 

NONCURRENT ASSETS
LEASES RECEIVABLE, NET OF CURRENT PORTION                   4,203,727                                -                          26,621                   4,230,348 

Total NONCURRENT ASSETS              4,203,727                           -                     26,621              4,230,348 

CAPITAL ASSETS
LAND                   1,481,401                                -                                  -                     1,481,401 
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS                                -                        133,065                        28,674                      161,739 
BUILDINGS                   2,070,050                                -                                  -                     2,070,050 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND RELATED IMPROVEMENTS                   5,706,011                                -                     1,751,519                   7,457,530 
COMPUTERS AND OFFICE EQUIPMENT                      113,997                                -                        172,465                      286,463 
BUILDINGS IMPROVEMENTS                   4,536,721                                -                        250,840                   4,787,561 
VEHICLES                      287,230                                -                                  -                        287,230 
GROUNDS MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT                      277,450                                -                        158,387                      435,837 
RIGHT TO USE LEASE ASSET  -  GASB 87                        35,050                                -                                  -                          35,050 
BASE CONVEYANCE                                -                                  -                                  -                                  -   
BASE HOUSING                                -                                  -                                  -                                  -   
OTHER                                -                                  -                                  -                                  -   
LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION                  (7,068,052)                                -                    (2,187,154)                  (9,255,206)
LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION  -  GASB 87                       (15,500)                                -                                  -                         (15,500)

Total CAPITAL ASSETS              7,424,359                 133,065                 174,730              7,732,154 

NET PENSION ASSET
NET PENSION ASSETS, NET                      156,524                                -                                  -                        156,524 

Total NET PENSION ASSET                 156,524                           -                             -                   156,524 

Total ASSETS            20,073,528                 299,302                 306,743            20,679,573 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS SUBSEQUENT TO THE MEASUREMENT                        16,224                                -                                  -                          16,224 
CHANGE IN ASSUMPTIONS                                -                                  -                                  -                                  -   
DIFFERENCES BETWEEN EXPECTED AND ACTUAL EXPERIENCE                        11,941                                -                                  -                          11,941 

Total DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES                   28,165                           -                             -                     28,165 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES       20,101,693            299,302            306,743       20,707,738 

CBS 1 Page 1 of 2

 
055



LUBBOCK REESE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Balance Sheet

As of 3/31/2025

(In Whole Numbers)

General Fund EDA Grant Fund
Data Center / 

Fiber Optic Fund Total

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                      145,780                        19,014                          2,590                      167,384 
ACCRUED EXPENSES                       (73,670)                                -                                  -                         (73,670)
REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS                      127,017                                -                                  -                        127,017 
UNEARNED REVENUES                       (96,010)                                -                         (16,694)                     (112,704)
COMPENSATED ABSENSES                        14,259                                -                                  -                          14,259 
LEASE LIABILITY, CURRENT                          3,563                                -                                  -                            3,563 
LEASE PAYABLES                                -                                  -                                  -                                  -   
DUE TO TRANSFERS                                -                                  -                                  -                                  -   
OTHER LIABILITIES                        98,432                                -                                  -                          98,432 

Total CURRENT LIABILITIES                 219,373                   19,014                  (14,104)                 224,283 

NON-CURRENT LIABLILITIES
LEASE LIABILITY, NET OF CURRENT PORTION                        12,477                                -                                  -                          12,477 

Total NON-CURRENT LIABLILITIES                   12,477                           -                             -                     12,477 

Total LIABILITIES                 231,850                   19,014                  (14,104)                 236,760 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
NET DIFF BETWEEN PROJECTED AND ACTUAL INVESTMENT                       (29,371)                                -                                  -                         (29,371)
CHANGE IN ASSUMPTION                          3,230                                -                                  -                            3,230 
LEASES - GASB 87                   5,483,101                                -                        106,889                   5,589,990 

Total DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES              5,456,960                           -                   106,889              5,563,849 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES              5,688,810                   19,014                   92,785              5,800,609 

FUND EQUITY
BEGINNING OF PERIOD                 14,081,568                      280,288                      192,876                 14,554,732 
TRANSFERS IN (OUT)                        16,569                                -                         (16,569)                                -   
YEAR TO DATE EARNINGS                      314,746                                -                          37,651                      352,397 

Total FUND EQUITY            14,412,883                 280,288                 213,958            14,907,129 

TOTAL LIABILITY, FUND BALANCE, DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION       20,101,693            299,302            306,743       20,707,738 

Total report                                -                                  -                                  -                                  -   

CBS 1 Page 2 of 2

 
056



LUBBOCK REESE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

From 10/1/2024 Through 3/31/2025

(In Whole Numbers)

General Fund EDA Grant Fund
Data Center  / 

Fiber Optic Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES                1,788,842                             -                     116,134                1,904,976 

OPERATING EXPENSES                1,584,547                             -                       78,483                1,663,029 

OPERATING INCOME(LOSS)                   204,295                             -                       37,651                   241,946 

NONOPERATING INTEREST INCOME                   110,451                             -                               -                     110,451 

TRANSFERS IN (OUT)                     16,569                             -                      (16,569)                             -   

NET NONOPERATING REVENUES                   127,020                             -                      (16,569)                   110,451 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND                   331,315                             -                       21,082                   352,397 

FUND EQUITY, BEGINNING              14,081,568                   280,288                   192,876              14,554,732 

FUND EQUITY, ENDING              14,412,883                   280,288                   213,958              14,907,129 

CREC 2 Page 1 of 1

 
057



LUBBOCK REESE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF REVENUES

From 10/1/2024 Through 3/31/2025
(In Whole Numbers)

General 
Fund

Data Center / 
Fiber Optic 

Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES
LEASE INCOME       1,191,529                    -    1,191,529 
DATA CENTER / FIBER OPTIC INCOME                   -             106,163     106,163 
COMMON AREA MAINTENANCE/PBT CAM FEES          389,891                    -       389,891 
USAGE FEES          172,979               9,971     182,950 
CONTRACT WORK INCOME            12,979                    -         12,979 
UTILITY FRANCHISE FEES            18,098                    -         18,098 

Total OPERATING REVENUES       1,785,477           116,134  1,901,611 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
INTEREST EXPENSE / BANK CHARGES               (490)                    -            (490)
MISCELLANEOUS INCOME              3,365                    -           3,365 
INTEREST INCOME          110,451                    -       110,451 

Total NON-OPERATING REVENUES          113,326                    -       113,326 

TOTAL REVENUES 1,898,803 116,134 2,014,937 

SSR  3 Page 1 of 1

 
058



LUBBOCK REESE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

From 10/1/2024 Through 3/31/2025
(In Whole Numbers)

General Fund

Data Center / 
Fiber Optic 

Fund Total

OPERATING EXPENSES
COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS:
SALARIES AND BENEFITS            472,253                     -              472,253 
CONTRACT SERVICES              11,519                3,985              15,504 
GENERAL AND LIABILITY INSURANCE            145,055                7,634            152,689 

Total COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS:            628,826              11,619            640,446 

BUILDING REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE:
REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE            345,482                     -              345,482 
BUILDING MAINTENANCE MATERIALS              15,445                   270              15,715 
MARKETING AND PROMOTIONAL EXPENSES              35,727                     -                35,727 
TRAVEL EXPENSES                6,111                     -                  6,111 
PRINTING AND ADVERTISING                   418                     -                     418 
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE            299,547              19,701            319,247 
TELEPHONE                1,177                     -                  1,177 
OFFICE SUPPLIES              18,053                     -                18,053 
TRAINING AND TUITION EXPENSES                5,684                     -                  5,684 
UTILITIES            160,435              20,609            181,044 
Total BUILDING REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE:            888,079              40,580            928,659 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING FEES                   632                     -                     632 
LEGAL FEES              58,593                     -                58,593 

Total PROFESSIONAL SERVICES              59,225                     -                59,225 

COMPUTER SOFTWARE AND MAINTENANCE
COMPUTER SOFTWARE AND MAINTENANCE                     -                15,950              15,950 

Total COMPUTER SOFTWARE AND 
MAINTENANCE                     -                15,950              15,950 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
BOARD EXPENSES                   774                     -                     774 
BANK CHARGES                   490                     -                     490 
INTERNET CHARGES                     -                10,333              10,333 
POSTAGE                   885                     -                     885 
MEETING EXPENSES                5,847                     -                  5,847 
LICENSES AND FEES                   421                     -                     421 

Total OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES                8,417              10,333              18,750 

Total OPERATING EXPENSES         1,584,547              78,483         1,663,029 
SSE  4 Page 1 of 1

 
059



LUBBOCK REESE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

From 3/1/2025 Through 3/31/2025

(In Whole Numbers)

Current 
Month 
Actual

Current 
Month  
Budget

 
Month 

Actual vs 
Budget 

Variance YTD Actual YTD Budget

YTD Actual 
vs Budget 
Variance

 REVENUES 
 Leases          196,294          191,667              4,628        1,191,529        1,150,000             41,529 
 PBT Cam Fees            64,982            63,667              1,315           389,891           382,000               7,891 
 Usage Fees            17,107            22,917             (5,809)           172,979           137,500             35,479 
 Contract Services                    -                   667                (667)             12,979               4,000               8,979 
 Utility Franchise Fees              1,397              1,667                (270)             18,098             19,000                (902)
 Other-Miscellaneous                    -                      -                      -                 3,365                     -                 3,365 

 Total REVENUES          279,781          280,583                (803)        1,788,842        1,692,500             96,342 

 EXPENSES 
 Salaries & Taxes            55,329            62,526              7,197           411,263           404,000             (7,263)
 Benefits - Health, Retirement & Wkr's Comp              9,490            12,792              3,302             60,989             76,750             15,761 
 Insurance -Property & General Liabilities            24,176            25,000                 824           145,055           150,000               4,945 
 Administrative Expenses                 480              1,033                 553               7,619               8,200                  581 
 General Office Expenses              8,870              6,488             (2,383)             37,242             38,925               1,683 
 Accounting & Auditing Services                 108              9,600              9,493                  632             33,600             32,968 
 Legal Services              8,032              6,250             (1,782)             58,593             37,500           (21,093)
 Network Maintenance Contract              1,560              1,667                 107             10,490             10,000                (490)
 Training & Travel              1,163              1,417                 254             11,795               8,500             (3,295)
 Marketing Expenses              4,966              6,750              1,784             35,405             40,500               5,095 
 Operations            51,126            54,242              3,116           345,482           325,450           (20,032)
 Utilities            14,747            32,250            17,503           160,435           182,903             22,468 

 Total EXPENSES          180,047          220,013            39,966        1,285,000        1,316,328             31,328 

 NIBPSID            99,734            60,570            39,163           503,841           376,172           127,669 

 NON OPERATING REVENUE 
 Interest Income            19,484              8,333            11,151           110,451             50,000             60,451 

 Total NON OPERATING REVENUE            19,484              8,333            11,151           110,451             50,000             60,451 

 DEPRECIATION 
 Depreciation Expense          (49,924)          (54,167)              4,242         (299,547)         (325,000)             25,453 

 Total DEPRECIATION          (49,924)          (54,167)              4,242         (299,547)         (325,000)             25,453 

 Increase (Decrease) In Fund Equity            69,293            14,737            54,556           314,746           101,172           213,574 

GENERAL FUND

SRE  5  400 Page 1 of 1

 
060



Explanation of Significant Budget Variances 2025 MARCH
 

Month Variance YTD Variance Explanations  

 
Revenues, Usage 4260 (5,809)$                  35,479$                 Water Usage fluctuates month to month Year End is expected to be over budget
Revenues, Contract Services 4300 (667)$                     8,979$                   KBR had large event that included use of the Abernathy Airport Year End is expected to be on budget.
Expenses, Salaries & Taxes 5100, 5110 7,197$                   (7,263)$                 YTD is over budget due to Bonuses paid out in December 2024 Year End is expected to be under budget
Expenses, Accounting & Auditing Services 5700 9,493$                   32,968$                 Auditors have not billed for services Year End is expected to be on budget.
Expenses, Legal Services 5710 (1,782)$                  (21,093)$               Extra Fees for Texas Tech Project Year End is expected to be over budget
Expenses, Operations 5900 3,116$                   (20,032)$               YTD actual is higher due to extra expenses for electrical and water system Year End is expected to be over budget
Expenses, Utilities 5380 17,503$                 22,468$                 Have not paid a water bill for 3 months due to a meter issue. Met with city to resolve this. Year End is expected to be over budget

GENERAL FUND

 
061



LUBBOCK REESE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

From 3/1/2025 Through 3/31/2025

(In Whole Numbers)

Current 
Month 
Actual

Current 
Month  
Budget

 
Month 

Actual vs 
Budget 

Variance YTD Actual YTD Budget

YTD Actual 
vs Budget 
Variance

 REVENUES 
 Usage Fees              1,497              2,083                (586)               9,971             12,500             (2,529)
 Fiber Optic/Wireless Income            17,694            17,500                 194           106,163           105,000               1,163 

 Total REVENUES            19,191            19,583                (392)           116,134           117,500             (1,366)

 EXPENSES 
 Insurance -Property & General Liabilities              1,272              1,333                   61               7,634               8,000                  366 
 General Office Expenses                   45                   83                   38                  270                  500                  230 
 Computer Software & Maintenance              2,450              3,333                 883             15,950             20,000               4,050 
 Internet              1,722              1,833                 111             10,333             11,000                  667 
 Building Maintenance & Repairs                 769              1,250                 481               3,985               7,500               3,515 
 Utilities              4,240              5,192                 951             20,609             31,150             10,541 

 Total EXPENSES            10,499            13,025              2,526             58,782             78,150             19,368 

 NIBPSID              8,692              6,558              2,134             57,352             39,350             18,002 

 DEPRECIATION 
 Depreciation Expense             (3,283)             (3,833)                 550           (19,701)           (23,000)               3,299 

 Total DEPRECIATION             (3,283)             (3,833)                 550           (19,701)           (23,000)               3,299 

 Increase (Decrease) In Fund Equity              5,408              2,725              2,683             37,651             16,350             21,301 

DATA CENTER /  FIBER OPTIC FUND

SRE  5  600 Page 1 of 1

 
062



LUBBOCK REESE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

From 3/1/2025 Through 3/31/2025

(In Whole Numbers)

Current 
Month 
Actual

Current 
Month 
Budget

Current Month 
Actual vs Budget 

Variance YTD Actual YTD Budget
YTD Actual vs 

Budget Variance

REVENUES
Leases          196,294          191,667                      4,628       1,191,529            1,150,000                    41,529 
PBT Cam Fees            64,982            63,667                      1,315          389,891               382,000                     7,891 
Usage Fees            18,604            25,000                    (6,396)          182,950               150,000                    32,950 
Contract Services                   -                   667                       (667)            12,979                   4,000                     8,979 
Utility Franchise Fees              1,397              1,667                       (270)            18,098                 19,000                       (902)
Other-Miscellaneous                   -                     -                             -                3,365                         -                       3,365 
Fiber Optic/Wireless Income            17,694            17,500                         194          106,163               105,000                     1,163 

Total REVENUES          298,972          300,167                    (1,195)       1,904,976            1,810,000                    94,976 

EXPENSES
Salaries & Taxes            55,329            62,526                      7,197          411,263               404,000                    (7,263)
Benefits - Health, Retirement & Wkr's Comp              9,490            12,792                      3,302            60,989                 76,750                    15,761 
Insurance -Property & General Liabilities            25,448            26,333                         885          152,689               158,000                     5,311 
Administrative Expenses                 480              1,033                         553              7,619                   8,200                        581 
General Office Expenses              8,915              6,571                    (2,345)            37,512                 39,425                     1,913 
Accounting & Auditing Services                 108              9,600                      9,493                 632                 33,600                    32,968 
Computer Software & Maintenance              2,450              3,333                         883            15,950                 20,000                     4,050 
Internet              1,722              1,833                         111            10,333                 11,000                        667 
Legal Services              8,032              6,250                    (1,782)            58,593                 37,500                  (21,093)
Network Maintenance Contract              1,560              1,667                         107            10,490                 10,000                       (490)
Training & Travel              1,163              1,417                         254            11,795                   8,500                    (3,295)
Marketing Expenses              4,966              6,750                      1,784            35,405                 40,500                     5,095 
Operations            51,126            54,242                      3,116          345,482               325,450                  (20,032)
Building Maintenance & Repairs                 769              1,250                         481              3,985                   7,500                     3,515 
Utilities            18,988            37,442                    18,454          181,044               214,053                    33,009 

Total EXPENSES          190,546          233,038                    42,492       1,343,782            1,394,478                    50,696 

NIBPSID          108,426            67,129                    41,297          561,194               415,522                  145,671 

NON OPERATING REVENUE
Interest Income            19,484              8,333                    11,151          110,451                 50,000                    60,451 

Total NON OPERATING REVENUE            19,484              8,333                    11,151          110,451                 50,000                    60,451 

DEPRECIATION
Depreciation Expense          (53,208)          (58,000)                      4,792        (319,247)              (348,000)                    28,753 

Total DEPRECIATION          (53,208)          (58,000)                      4,792        (319,247)              (348,000)                    28,753 

Increase (Decrease) In Fund Equity            74,702            17,462                    57,240          352,397               117,522                  234,875 

COMBINED FUNDS

CSRE  6 Page 1 of 1

 
063



LUBBOCK REESE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

From 3/1/2025 Through 3/31/2025

(In Whole Numbers)

Current Month 
Actual

Prior Year's 
Month Actual Variance YTD Actual

Prior Year's  
YTD Actual Variance

REVENUES
Leases 196,294 189,025 7,269 1,191,529 1,086,377 105,152 
PBT Cam Fees               64,982               62,646                 2,336             389,891             375,874               14,017 
Usage Fees               18,604               22,666                (4,062)             182,950             139,472               43,478 
Contract Services                       -                         -                         -                 12,979               12,450                    529 
Utility Franchise Fees                 1,397                 1,749                   (352)               18,098               21,891                (3,793)
Insurance Proceeds                       -                 17,905              (17,905)                       -                 23,103              (23,103)
Other-Miscellaneous                       -                   8,068                (8,068)                 3,365               12,811                (9,446)
Fiber Optic/Wireless Income               17,694               20,216                (2,522)             106,163             121,295              (15,132)

Total REVENUES             298,972             322,273              (23,301)          1,904,976          1,793,273             111,703 

EXPENSES
Salaries & Taxes               55,329               47,316                 8,013             411,263             368,653               42,610 
Benefits - Health, Retirement & Wkr's                 9,490                 7,159                 2,331               60,989               64,345                (3,356)
Insurance -Property & General Liabilities               25,448               23,607                 1,841             152,689             131,944               20,745 
Administrative Expenses                    480                    467                       13                 7,619                 6,339                 1,280 
General Office Expenses                 8,915                 5,353                 3,562               37,512               37,359                    153 
Accounting & Auditing Services                    108                 6,500                (6,392)                    632               10,894              (10,262)
Computer Software & Maintenance                 2,450                 2,450                       -                 15,950               15,925                       25 
Internet                 1,722                 1,722                       -                 10,333               10,333                       -   
Legal Services                 8,032                 5,340                 2,692               58,593               31,087               27,506 
Network Maintenance Contract                 1,560                 2,430                   (870)               10,490               11,093                   (603)
Training & Travel                 1,163                    963                    200               11,795               10,360                 1,435 
Marketing Expenses                 4,966                 2,271                 2,695               35,405               31,975                 3,430 
Operations               51,126               45,830                 5,296             345,482             257,850               87,632 
Building Maintenance & Repairs                    769                 2,243                (1,474)                 3,985                 6,228                (2,243)
Utilities               18,988               34,246              (15,258)             181,044             165,306               15,738 

Total EXPENSES             190,546             187,898                 2,648          1,343,782          1,159,692             184,090 

NIBPSID             108,426             134,375              (25,949)             561,194             633,581              (72,387)

NON OPERATING REVENUE
Interest Income               19,484               20,722                (1,238)             110,451             115,896                (5,445)

Total NON OPERATING REVENUE               19,484               20,722                (1,238)             110,451             115,896                (5,445)
                      -                         -   

DEPRECIATION                       -                         -   
Depreciation Expense              (53,208)              (53,208)                       -              (319,247)            (319,247)                       -   

Total DEPRECIATION              (53,208)              (53,208)                       -              (319,247)            (319,247)                       -   
                      -                         -   

Increase (Decrease) In Fund Equity               74,702             101,889              (27,187)             352,397             430,229              (77,832)

MONTHLY & YTD COMPARISONS OF CURRENT & PRIOR YEAR'S ACTUALS

CSRE 7 Page 1 of 1

 
064



April 23, 2025
LRRA Quarterly Investments and Collateralization Report

Bank and Account Title
Account 

Number Ending
Interest 

Yield
Benchmark Rate (6-

Month US T-Bill)

Quarter 1        Interest 
Earned     Oct - Dec 

2024

Quarter 2      
Interest Earned  
Jan - Mar 2025

Quarter 3     
Interest Earned  
Apr - June 2025

Quarter 4      
Interest Earned  July 

- Sept 2025
FY2025 Interest 

Earned YTD

Account         
Balance as of 

03/31/25

FDIC Insured or 
Collateralization (market 

value)

PlainsCapital Operating Account 2003 4.00% 4.23% 16,207.45$                  29,796.49$            46,003.94$           4,438,388.19$          4,695,830.00$                  
Totals PlainsCapital 16,207.45$                 29,796.49$           -$                          -$                            46,003.94$           4,438,388.19$          4,695,830.00$                  

Peoples Bank ICS/Sweep Account* 288 3.56% 4.23% 40,023.78$                  24,423.05$            64,446.83$           1,700,792.86$          250,000.00$                     
Peoples Bank EDA 575 0.00% 4.23% -$                              -$                        -$                          -$                            -$                       113,108.14$             250,000.00$                     
Totals Peoples Bank 40,023.78$                 24,423.05$           -$                          -$                            64,446.83$           1,813,901.00$          

Total of All Accounts 56,231.23$                 54,219.54$           -$                          -$                            110,450.77$         6,252,289.19$          

Per our Investment Policy our Weighted Average Maturity (WAM) is 6 months. Our investments are all cash and available immediately

*No more than $250,000 (the FDIC insured amount) is invested in each bank as part of this program

S:\BOARD\2024-2025\2025  04 23\FINANCIALS\Investment and Collateral Report Q2 FY2025.xlsx 
065



DATE EVENT

April April 10 TTU HUB Expo

April 18 Good Friday – Reese Office Closed

April 23 LRRA Board of Directors Meeting

May May 26 Memorial Day – Reese Office Closed

NO MAY BOARD MEETING

June June 18 LRRA Board of Directors Meeting

April 2025
EVENTS & ACTIVITIES

 
066


	AGENDA ITEM 4 3.26.25 Board Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority
	Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
	March 26, 2025
	The Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority held its Regular Meeting at 8:00 a.m. March 26, 2025, at the Reese Technology Center, LRRA Board Room, 9801 Reese Boulevard, Suite 200, Lubbock, TX 79416.
	Call the meeting to order.
	Reconvene the Board of Directors Meeting
	Tim Pierce adjourned the Executive Session at 9:46 a.m. and reconvened Open Session at 9:59 a.m.


	ACTION ITEM 6 Resolution CEO Delegation of Authority to Amend Leases.pdf
	April 23, 2025

	ACTION ITEM 7 First Amendment Blank Slate Innovation to Amend Lease Terms.pdf
	April 23, 2025

	Investment and Collateral Report Q2 FY2025.pdf
	Sheet1

	13  Financial Statement 7 - Comparison of Current & Prior Year's Actuals.pdf
	Sheet1

	12 Financial Statement 6 - Statement of Revenues & Expenses - COMBINED  FUNDS.pdf
	Sheet1

	10 Financial Statement 5 - Statement of Revenues & Expenses - FO - 600.pdf
	600

	9 Explaination of Budget Variances - GF - 400.pdf
	General Fund

	8 Financial Statement 5 - Statement of Revenues & Expenses - GF - 400.pdf
	400

	7 Financial Statement 4  -  Combining Stmt of Revenue Expense.pdf
	Sheet1

	6 Financial Statement 3  -  Combining Stmt of Revenue Expense.pdf
	Sheet1

	5 Financial Statement 2  -  Combining Stmt of Revenue Expense.pdf
	Sheet1

	4 Financial Statement 1  -  Balance Sheet.pdf
	Sheet1

	3 Financial Statement C - Financial Highlights.pdf
	Financial Highlights

	2 Financial Statement B - Available Cash Chart.pdf
	Cash Chart

	1 Financial Statement A - Cash Balance.pdf
	Cash Balances

	AGENDA ITEM 9 EVENTS & ACTIVITIES – March 2025.pdf
	Slide Number 1




